Exhibit C

CITY OF COLORADO SPRINGS/EL PASO COUNTY DRAINAGE BOARD MEETING SUMMARY DECEMBER 6, 2018

The City of Colorado Springs/El Paso County Drainage Board held its meeting at 3:00 PM, Thursday, December 6, 2018 in the City Council Chambers at City Hall at 107 N. Nevada Avenue.

MEMBERS PRESENT: Bob Irwin, Jim Houk, Tim McConnell, Darin Moffett,

Jonathan Moore and Marc Whorton

MEMBERS ABSENT: Vince Crowell

OTHERS PRESENT: Brian Kelley (City), Erin Powers (City), Anna Bergmark (City), Elizabeth Nijkamp (El Paso County), Gilbert LaForce (El Paso County), Daniel Torres (El Paso County), Beck Grimm (El Paso County), Lois Ruggera (City), Stacey Covington (City), Jessica Hyman (City), Carol Medina (City), Christina Aragon (City), Dave Lethbridge (DRL Bridge Consulting), Kevin Walker (WSDM), Autumn Mason(WSDM), Virgil Sanchez (M& S) and Chaz Collins (C&C Land).

Item 1: Meeting called to order by Bob Irwin at 3:02pm

Item 2: Approval of the minutes from the November 1, 2018 Drainage Board Meeting Motion was made by *Jim Houk* to approve the minutes of November 1, 2018. Motion seconded by *Tim McConnell*.

Motion passed 6-0

Item 3: Old Business - None

Item 4: New Business

a) Sand Creek Drainage Basin Fee Increase and Reimbursement for Forest Meadows Filing No 9 - (City)

ACTION REQUESTED: This action is requested by ESI to increase the drainage fund in Sand Creek by \$149,623.60. This would result in a fee increase of \$28.08 per acre. The subsequent action is to reimburse ESI for drainage facilities constructed in Forest Meadows Filing No 9. The total request from the Sand Creek Drainage Basin fund for drainage facilities is \$149,623.60.

Darren Moffett recused himself for item 4a.

City staff did not support requested reimbursements due to lack of supporting documentation as required by the City of Colorado Springs Engineering Criteria Manual and City Code. A presentation was given to support City staff's position. The relevant code section was referenced:

7.7.907 - B. "Determination Of Credit For Drainage Facilities: The credit to which a subdivider shall be entitled from the appropriate subfund of the basin involved in the subdivision storm drainage fund, as set forth in subsection A of this section, shall be determined on the basis of

the actual cost incurred in constructing the drainage facilities, plus ten percent (10%) for engineering expense. The subdivider shall be responsible for contracting for the construction of the drainage facilities after receiving at least three (3) sealed bids for construction of the drainage facilities. If the subdivider is unable to get at least three (3) sealed bids the City Engineer shall be responsible for determining that the bid or bids received are the lowest responsible bids. The decision of the City Engineer may be appealed to the Drainage Board. Bidders must be on the City's approved contractor list. The subdivider shall award the bid to the lowest responsible bidder within thirty (30) days after receiving the bids."

Additionally, the following procedures from the ECM Section 13.2 were not followed: "6. The developer then submits this certification along with records of the cost of construction, i.e., a copy of the bid, as-paid bills, a copy of the City's inspection letters, and a cover letter of request for cash reimbursement or credits. This request must be submitted and accepted by EDRD by the first Thursday of the month to be considered at the next month's Drainage Board Meeting."

Actual cost data was missing for a significant part of the system, and the remaining cost data was not presented in a manner that was decipherable to determine reimbursable items. The reimbursement request was based on estimated unit costs from the Final Drainage Report. City staff clarified that the lack of actual cost data was the reason for recommending denial of the requested motions.

Dave Lethbridge, consultant for the applicant, explained that the Filing 9 request was postponed initially because the system had not yet been accepted by the City inspector.

Jonathan Moore read aloud the following statement from the Final Drainage Report completed by M&S Civil Consultants, Inc.:

"Upon completion of the aforementioned improvements, M&S shall submit the actual construction costs to the City of Colorado Springs/ City Drainage Board for reimbursement."

Jonathan Moore asked why actual costs were not submitted.

Virgil Sanchez stated that actual costs were submitted by Dave Lethbridge.

Jonathan Moore asked where the actual costs were.

Dave Lethbridge stated that he submitted a drainage addendum and discussed the addendum with Steve Rossoll. Dave Lethbridge stated that this approach worked for Filing 8.

Bob Irwin tried to clarify

Chaz Collins, with the developer, stated that the developer had negotiated with Steve Rossoll (former City staff) regarding the unit costs that would be used in the report.

City staff clarified that the unit costs were negotiated for the purposes of the drainage report for initial fee deferral. The unit costs were not intended to be a substitute for actual cost documentation after construction.

Jonathan Moore asked Mark Whorton how internal costs were calculated, as Classic performs internal work similar to the Morley company.

Mark Whorton stated that Classic keeps track of invoices for engineering and surveying services for in-house items. Classic does not have in-house construction.

Brian Kelley stated for the record that the Forest Meadows Filing 8 and Filing 9 facility was constructed in lieu of the facility that was to be constructed for Forest Meadows Filing 1 Phase 4. Clarified that the entire drainage system for Forest Meadows Filing 1 Phase 4 is not eligible for reimbursement in City staff's opinion. The entire Forest Meadows Filing 1 Phase 4 system was inadequate to convey flows as required, and was replaced by the Filing 8 and Filing 9 system. Therefore, the entire Forest Meadows Filing 1 Phase 4 system is not reimbursable in City staff's opinion.

Jonathan Moore stated that this is a difficult decision. The drainage report was approved by the engineer, negotiations with Steve are heresay as he is not in attendance to clarify, proper backup documentation should have been provided, and as a result he will not be supporting the reimbursement.

Jim Houk stated that City staff has repeatedly made adequate requests for backup documentation, and that the lack of better records, regardless of in-house work, has caused the current issue. Regardless of how a business is set up, there are still expenses and revenues that must be tracked.

Bob Irwin stated that he believed the board set a precedent by approving the Filing 8 reimbursement.

Jim Houk stated that his understanding was that backup documentation would be provided with the Filing 9 reimbursement request.

Jonathan Moore stated that his understanding from the Filing 8 decision was that they specifically decided to not set a precedent.

Bob Irwin stated that the public facility was built and paid for by a developer.

Jim Houk stated that the board has a responsibility to the basin funds themselves and to all other participants in the drainage basin fee program.

Bob Irwin stated that he did not believe the reimbursement amount was an issue.

Jim Houk stated that it is a matter of following the standards, and that this has not been the case.

Elizabeth Nijkamp also stated that the Forest Meadows Filing 1 Phase 4 system was not reimbursable because it was replaced by the Filing 8 and Filing 9 system. Nijkamp offered to provide additional information to the board if needed.

Tim McConnell stated that this was a difficult decision, and that the intent was not to set a precedent for future projects with this decision.

Bob Irwin suggested requiring email documentation from City staff indicating the negotiation results in the future.

Motion was made by *Bob Irwin* for a Sand Creek Drainage Basin Fee Increase and Reimbursement for Forest Meadows Filing No 9 in the amount of \$149,623.60. Motion seconded by *Tim McConnell*.

Motion passed 4-1

Motion was made by *Tim McConnell* for a Sand Creek Drainage Basin Fee Increase of \$28.08 per acre. Motion seconded by *Jim Houk*.

Motion passed 5-0

b) Drainage Fee Increase in Cottonwood Creek Drainage Basin – (City) ACTION REQUESTED: To rescind previous City/County Drainage Board approval of a fee increase to the Cottonwood Creek Drainage Basin.

Motion was made by *Tim McConnell* to rescind previous City/County Drainage Board approval of a fee increase to the Cottonwood Creek Drainage Basin. Motion seconded by *Marc Whorton*.

Motion passed 6-0

c) Partial drainage reimbursement, Sand Creek Basin (FOFO4000), Bridge Funds for facilities constructed at Sand Creek and Marksheffel Road – (County)

ACTION REQUESTED: This action is requesting a partial bridge reimbursement within the Sand Creek Basin (FOFO4000) per the Land Development Code section 8.5.5, Resolution 99-383, the Drainage Criteria Manual chapter 3, and the applicable Drainage Basin Planning Study. This request is for a reimbursement in the amount of \$922,149.69 to the Central Marksheffel Metropolitan District (District), Pikes Peak Avenue, suite 100. Colorado Springs, CO 80903.

Elizabeth Nijkamp clarified that the reimbursement request did not include architectural features as they are purely aesthetic and were not a County requirement.

Motion was made by *Tim McConnell* for the Partial drainage reimbursement, Sand Creek Basin (FOFO4000), Bridge Funds for facilities constructed at Sand Creek and Marksheffel Road. Motion seconded by *Jim Houk*.

Motion passed 6-0

d) Housekeeping -

➤ 2019 Annual Luncheon/Meeting is normally held towards the end of January requesting Drainage Board to settle on a date.

A decision was made to hold the Annual Meeting on January 24th, 2019.

e) Open Discussion -

- Postponing discussion on handling items without proper documentation to the next meeting.
- > The Drainage Board thanks Brian Kelley for his many years of dedicated service.

Item 5: Meeting adjourned at 4:20pm.